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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF IDAHO

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
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INDICTMENT

21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1)
21 U.S.C. § 846
13 U.S.C. § 1956(a)(1MAXD)

Plaintiff,
VS.

ALFREDO NUNO; MARIA NUNG

et e et e St S St e N

a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, ak.a. MARIA 8 U.S.C. § 1952 {a)1)
GARCIA; and ENRIQUE GALLEGOS, 1 US.C. § 53324(3)
2 US.C. § 853
Defendants.
The Grand Jury charges:
COUNT ONE

CONSPIRACY TO POSSESS/DISTRIBUTE A CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE
(21 U.S.C. § 846, 841(a)(1)(A))

From an unknown date, bul at least between and including the dates of December, 1997, and
January, 2000, within the District of Idaho and elsewhere, the defendants herein, ALFREDO
NUNO; MARIA NUNQ; and ENRIQUE GALLEGOS, did knowingly and intentionally combine,
conspire, confederate and agree with each other and with other persons both known and unknown
to the Grand Jury to possess with the intent to distribute and distribute controlled substances
including 50 kilograms or more of a mixture or substance conlaining a detectable amount of

m;irijuana in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections, 846 and 841(a)(1).
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1. Objects of the Conspiracy

The objects of this criminal conspiracy include the following:

a. To obtain and possess large quantities of controlled subslances for distribution;
b. To reap the profits from the sale of these controlled substances; and/or
¢.  To do the above without detcction by law enforcement authorities.

2. Means and Methods of the Conspiracy

Armnong the means and methods by which the conspirators conducted and participated in
the criminal conspiracy ate the following:

| The conspirators obtained murijuana.

The conspirators directly took part in the transporting, storing, and distributing of
marijuana or made arrangements and directed its transportation, storage and distribution.

The conspirators laundercd the procceds of their illegal drug activity and directed the
laundering thereof by directing such proceeds be transferred via electronic means for the purpose
of disguising the origins of the money and promoting further illegal activity.

3. Acts in Furtherance of the Conspiracy

In furtherance of the crimmal conspiracy and to eftect the object thereof, in the District of
Idaho and elsewhere and on or about the dates set forth below, the defendants and other associates
and/or coconspirators, both known and unknown to the Grand Jury, committed and/or caused to be
committed acts in furtherance of the conspiracy, including, but not limnited to, the following:

(a) Acts Category No. 1 —

Between on or about December 1997, and May, 1999, within Bannock County, in the
District of Idaho, and elsewhere the defendants, ALFRED{O NUNO and MARIA NUNQO,
did knowingly and intentionally possess with intent to distribute 50 kilograms or more of
4 mixture or substance containing a detectable amount of marijuana, and did supply this
marijuana to individuals including ENRIQUE GALLEGOS, and others with the direction

that these individuals were to distribute the marijuana and return the proceeds thereo!.
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"1 (b) Acts Category No 2 - 4
2 On or about the dates indicated below, ALFREDQ NUNQ and MARIA NUNO,
3 knowingly received and directed payment of proceeds of the distribution of controlled
4 substances, namely marijuana, from the District of Idaho and into Arizona and aided and
5 abetted the same as follows:
6
OVERT
7 ACT TRANSACTION DATE AMOUNT FROM TO
2 12/10/97 $750.00 Kevin Tan Maria Karger
8 3 12/10/97 $750.00 Kevin Tan Alfrecdo Nuno
9 4 12/20/97 $900.00 Kevin Tan Alfredo Nuno
¥
10 (¢) Acts Category No 5 - 11
1 On or about December 19, 1997 through May 11, 1999, ALFREDO NUNO and
12 MARIA NUNO, knowingly directed payment and/or received proceeds ol
13 distribution of controlled substances an unlawful activity, all from the District of
14 Idaho, or aided and abetted the same as follows:
150 overt
16 ACT TRANSACTION DATE AMOUNT FROM TO LOCATION
‘ 5 12/19/97 $2,000.00 Ennque Gullegos Maria Garcia ~ Tucson, AZ
- 6 3/25/98 $200.00 Enriquc Gallegos Maria Karger  Jackpot, NV
7 4/13/98 $750.00 Enrique Gallegos Alfredo Nuno  Tucson, AZ
18 g 4/13/98 $750.00 Enrique Gallegos David Belmonte Tucson, AZ
9 7/14/99 $500.00 Enrique Gallegos Maria Karger  Tucson, AZ
i9 10 0/16/98 $200.00 FEnrique Gallegos Maria kKarger  Tucson, AZ
11 5/11/99 $750.00 Enriquc Gallegos Maria Karger  Las Vegas, NV
20 (d) Acts Category No 12 - 19
21 On or about May 19, 1998 through September 27, 1998, ALFREDO NUNO and
22 MARIA NUNO, knowingly directed payment and/or received proceeds of distribution of
23 controlled substances an unlawtul activity, all from the District of ldaho, into Arizona, or
4 atded and abetted the same as follows:
25
26
27
28
5 INDICTMENT - 3
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13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

23
24
25
26
27
28

OVERT TRANSACTION

ACT DATE AMOUNT FROM TO
12 5/19/98 $800.00 Sherri Guerrero Adrian Rojas
13 6/15/98 $719.00 John Davis Maria Nuno
14 6/15/98 $719.00 John Davis Alfredo Nuno
15 6/22/98 $982.00 Juanita Guerrero Alfredo Nuno
16 T/17/98 $1,217.00 John Davis Alfredo Nuno
17 T/22/98 $200.00 Jen Hess Alfredo Nuno
18 7122/98 $800.00 Juanita Guerrero Alfredo Nuno
19 9/27/98 $296.00 Juanita Guerrero Alfredo Nuno
(e) Acts Category No 20 - 23
On or about May 4, 1998 through July 2, 1998, ALFREDO NUNO and MARIA NUNO,
knowingly directed payment of distribution of controlied substances an unlawful activity, all
from the District of Idaho, into Bank of Commerce Account Number 08-1708003873, or
atded and abetted the same as follows:
OVERT ACT TRANSACTION DATE AMOUNT
20 5/4/98 $2300
21 5/19/98 $3600
22 6/12/98 $2500
23 712198 $800

(0 Acts Category No, 24

Between on or about January 2000, and March, 2000, within Bannock County, in the
District of Idaho, and clsewhere (he defendant, ALFREDO NUNQ contacted Johnay
Guerrero and told Mr. Guertero that.if the authorities asked about money paid by he or his
wife Maria to the Nunos, the Guerreros were to say it was payment for furniture they had

purchased.
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COUNT TWO

LAUNDERING OF MONETARY INSTRUMENTS
(18 U.S.C. §1956(a)(1)(A)(i), and 18 US.C. § 2)

On or about December 10, 1997, in the District of Idaho, defendants ALFREDO NUNQ;
MARIA NUNO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a. MARIA GARCIA did knowingly conduct
and cause to be conducted a financial transaction affecting interstate commerce, to wit: a Western
Umon Money Wire Transfer in the amount of $750 from Kevin Tan, in Idaho, to Maria Kareer, in
Tucson, Arizona, which involved the proceeds of a specified unlawful activity, that is felony drug
trafficking, and that said defendants conducted and caused to be conducted the financial
transaction with the intent to promote the carrying on of said specified unlawful activity, and do
so knowing that the property involved in the financial transaction, that is monetary instrurments in
the amount of $750, represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity, in violation of

Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956¢a)(1)(A)i) and 2.

COUNT THREE

LAUNDERING OF MONETARY INSTRUMENTS
(18 U.S.C. §1956(a)(1)(A)(i), and 18 U.S.C. § 2)

On or about December 10, 1997, in the District of Idaho, defendants ALFREDO NUNO;
MARIA NUNO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a. MARIA GARCIA did knowingly conduct
and cause to be conducted a financial transaction affecting interstate commerce, to wit: a Western
Union Money Wire Transfer in the amount of $750 from Kevin Tan, in Idaho, to Alfredo Nuno, in
Tucson, Arizona, which involved the proceeds of a specified unlawful activity, that is telony drug
trafficking, and that said defendants conducted and caused to be conducted the financizl
transaction with the intent to promote the carrying on of said specified unlawful activity, and did
so knowingly that the property involved in the financial transaction, that is monetary instruments
in the amount of $750, represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity, in violation of

Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956(a)(1)(A)() and 2.
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COUNT FOUR
LAUNDERING OF MONETARY INSTRUMENTS
(18 U1.5.C. §1956(a)(1)(A)(i), and 18 U.S.C. § 2)

On or about December 20, 1997, in the District of Tdaho, defendants ALFREDQ NUNOQ;
MARIA NUNO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a. MARIA GARCIA did knowingly conduct
and cause to be conducted a financial transaction affecting intersiate commerce, to wit; 4 Western
Union Money Wire Transfer in the amount of $900 from Kevin Tan, in Idaho, to Alfredo Nuno, in
Tucson, Arizona, which involved the proceeds of a specified unlawful activity, that is felony drug
trafficking, and that said defendants conducted and caused to be conducted the financial
transaction with the intent to promote the carrying on of said specified unlawful activity, and did
s0 knowing that the property involved in the financial transaction, that is monetary instruments in
the amount of $900, represented the procceds of some form of unlawful activity, in violation of

Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956(a)(1)(A)(i) and 2.

COUNT FIVE
LAUNDERING OF MONETARY INSTRUMENTS
(18 U.S.C. 81956(a)(1)(A)(i), and 18 U.S.C. § 2)

On or about December 19, 1997, in the District of Tdaho, defendants ALFREDO NUNO;
MARIA NUNO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a, MARIA GARCIA did knowingly conduct
and cause to be conducted a financial (ransaction affecting interstate commerce, to wit: a Western
Union Money Wire Transfer in the amount of $2000 from Enrique Gallegos, in Tdaho, to Maria
Garcia, in Tucson, Arizona, which invalved the proceeds of a specified unlawtul activity, that is
felony drug trafficking, and that said defendants conducted and caused to be conducted the
financial transaction with the intent to promole the carrying on of said specified unlawful activity,
and did so knowing that the property involved in the financial transaction, that'is monetary
instruments in the amount of $2000, represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity,

in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956(a)(1)(A)(1) and 2.
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COUNT SIX
LAUNDERING OF MONETARY INSTRUMENTS

(18 U.S.C. §1956(a)(1)(A)(i), and 18 U.S.C. § 2)

On or about March 25, 1998, in the District of Idaho, defendants ALFREDOQ NUNO;
MARIA NUNO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a. MARIA GARCIA did knowingly conduct
and cause to be conducted a financial transaction affecting interstate commerce, to wit: a Western
Union Money Wire Transfer in the amount of $200 {rom Enrique Gallegos, in 1daho, to Maria
Karger, in Jackpot, Nevada, which involved the proceeds of a specificd unlawful activity, that is
felony drug tratficking, and thar said defendants conducted and caused to be conducted the
financtal transaction with the intent 1o promote the carrying on of said specified unlawful activity,
and did so knowing that the property involved in the financial transaction, that is monetary
instruments in the amount of $200, represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity, in

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956(a)(1)(A)(i) and 2.

COUNT SEVEN

LAUNDERING OF MONETARY INSTRUMENTS
(18 U.S.C. §1956(a)(1)(A)(i), and 18 US.C. § 2)

On or about April 13, 1998, in the Distrct of Idaho, defendants ALFREDQ NUNO:
MARIA NUNQO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a. MARIA GARCIA did knowingly conduct
and caused to be conducted a financial transaction atfecting interstatc commerce, (0 wit: a
Western Union Moncy Wire Transfer in the amount of $750 from Enrique Gallegos, in Idaho, to
Altredo Nuno, in Tucson, Arizona, which involved the proceeds of a specified unlawful activity,
that is felony drug trafficking, and that said defendants conducted and caused to be conducted the
financial transaction with the intent to promote the carrying on of said specified unlawful activity,
and did so knowing that the property involved in the financtal transaction, that is monetary
instruments in the amount of $750, represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity,

in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956¢a)(1)(A)i) and 2.

INDICTMENT - 7




COUNT EIGHT
LAUNDERING OF MONETARY INSTRUMENTS
(18 U.S.C. §1956(a)(l)(A)(i), and 18 U.S.C. § 2)

On or about April 13, 1998, in the District of Idaho, defendants ALFREDO NUNO;
MARIA NUNO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a. MARIA GARCIA did knowingly conduct
and cause to be conducted a financial transaction affecting interstate commerce, to wit; a Western
Union Money Wire Transfer in the amount of $730 from Enrique Gallegos, in Idaho, to David
Belmonte, in Tucson, Arizona, which involved the proceeds of a specified unlawful activity, that
is telony drug trafficking, and. that said defendants conducted und caused to be conducted the
financial transaction with the intent to promote the carrying on of said specified unlawful activity,
and did so knowing that the property involved in the financial transaction, that is monetary
instruments in the amount of $750, represcnted the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity, in

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956(a)(1){(A)i) and 2.

COUNT NINE

LAUNDERING OF MONETARY INSTRUMENTS
(18 U.S.C. §1956(a)(1X(AXi), and 18 U.S.C. § 2)

On or about July 14, 1998, in the District of Idaho, defendants ALFREDO NUNO;
MARIA NUNQ ak.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a, MARIA GARCIA did knowingly conduct
and caused Lo be conducted a financial transaction affecting interstate commerce, to wil* a
Western Union Money Wire Transfer in the amount of $500 from Enrique Gallegos, in Idaho, to
Moaria Karger, in Tucson, Arizona, which invelved the proceeds of a specified unlawful activity,
that is felony drug trafficking, and that said defendants conducted. and causcd to be conducted the
financial transaction with the intent to promote the carrying on of said specified unlawful activity,
and did so knowing that the property involved in the financial transaction, that is monetary
instruments in the amount of $500, represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity, in

violation of Title 18, United Stales Code, Sections 1956(a)(1)A)(i) and 2.
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COUNT TEN
LAUNDERING OF MONETARY INSTRUMENTS
(18 U.5.C. §19536(a} (1A )i), and 18 U.S.C. § 2)

On or about September 16, 1998, in the District of Idaho, defendants ALFREDOQO
NUNO; MARIA NUNO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a. MARIA GARCIA did knowingly
conduct and caused to be conducted a financial transaction affecting interstate commerce, to wit: a
Westernt Union Money Wire Transfer in the amount of $200 from Enrique Gallegos, in Idaho, to
Maria Karger, in Tucson, Arizona, which involved the procceds of a specified unlawful activity,
that is felony drug trafficking, and that said defendants conducted and caused to be conducted the
financial transaction with the intent to prornote the carrying on of said specified unlawful activity,
and did so knowing that the property involved in the financial transaction, that is monetary
instruments in the amount of $200, represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity, in

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956(a)(1)(A)(i) and 2.

COUNT ELEVEN

LAUNDERING OF MONETARY INSTRUMENTS
(18 U.8.C. §1956(a)(1)(A)(i), and 18 U.S.C. § 2)

On or about May 11, 1999, in the District of Idaho, defendants ALFREDO NUNQ;
MARIA NUNO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a. MARIA GARCIA did knowingly conduct
and cause to be conducted a financial transaction affecting interstate commerce, to wit: a Westemn
Union Money Wire Transfer in the amount of $750 from Enrique Gallegos, in Idaho, to Maria
Karger, in Las Vegas, Nevada, which involved the proceeds of a specified unlawful activity, that
is felony drug trafficking, and that said defendants conducted and caused to be conducted the
tinancial transaction with the intent to promole the carrying on of said specificd unlawful activity,
and did so knowing that the property involved in the financial transaction, that is monctary
instruments in the amount of $750, represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity, in

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956(a)(1)}A)i) and 2.

INDICTMENT - %




1 COUNT TWELVE

2 LAUNDERING OF MONETARY INSTRUMENTS
) (18 U.S.C. §1956(a)(1)(A)(i), and 18 U.K.C. § 2)
4 On or about May 19, 1998, in the District of Idaho, defendants ALFREDO NUNQO;
3 MARIA NUNO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a. MARIA GARCIA did knowingly conduct
6 and cause to be conducted a financial transaction affecting interstate commerce, to wit: 4 Western
7 Union Money Wire Transfer in the amount of $800 from Sherri Guerrero, in Idaho, 1o Adrian
3 Rojas, in Tucson, Arizona, which involved the proceeds of a specified unlawlul activity, that is
9 felony drug trafficking, and that said defendants conducted and caused to be conducted the
10 financial transaction with the intent to promote the carrying on of said speciticd unlawful activity,
Il and did s0 knowing that the property involved in the financial transaction, that is monetary
12 instruments in the amount of $800, represented the procecds of some form of unlawful activity, in

13 violation of Title 18, United States Code, Scctions 1956(a)(1)(A)X({) and 2,

14
15 COUNT THIRTEEN
16 LAUNDERING OF MONETARY INSTRUMENTS
(18 U.K.C. §1956(a)(1)(A)i), and 18 US.C, § 2)
17
1% On or about June 15, 1998, in the District of Idaho, defendants ALFREDQ NUNO;

19 MARIA NUNO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a. MARIA GARCIA did knowingly conduct

20 and cause to be conducted a financial transaction affecting interstale commerce, to wit: a Westemn
21 Union Money Wire Transfer in the amount of $719 trom John Davis, in Idaho, to Maria Nuno, in
22 Tucson, Arizona, which involved the proceeds of a specified unlawful activity, that is felony drug
23 trafficking, and that said defendants conducted and caused to be conducted the financial

24 transaction with the intent 1o promote the carrying on of said specificd unlawful activity, and did
25 s0 knowing that the property involved in the financial transaction, that is monetary instruments in
26 the amount of $719, represented the procecds of some form of unlawful activity, in violation of

27 Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956(a)(1)A)1) and 2.
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COUNT FOURTEEN

LAUNDERING OF MONETARY INSTRUMENTS
(18 U.S.C. §1956(a)(1)}{(A)i), and 18 US.C. § 2)

On or about June 15, 1998, in the District of ldaho, defendanis ALFREDO NUNQ;
MARIA NUNO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a. MARIA GARCIA did knowingly conduct
and cause Lo be conducted a financial transaction affecting interstatc commerce, to wit: a Western
Union Money Wire Transfer in the amount of $719 from John Davis, in Idaho, to Alfredo Nuno,
in Tueson, Arizona, which involved the proceeds of a specified unlawful activity, that is felony
drug traflicking, and that said delendants conducted and caused to be conducted the financial
transaction with the inlent to promote the carrying on of said specified unlawful activity, and did
so knowing that the property involved in the financial transaction, that is monetary instruments in
the amount of $719, represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity, in violation of

Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956(a)(1)}A)i) and 2.

COUNT FIFTEEN
LAUNDERING OF MONETARY INSTRUMENTS
(18 U.5.C. §1956(a)(1)(A)({), and 18 U.5.C. § 2)

On or about June 22, 1998, in the District of Idaho, detendants ALFREDOQ NUNQ;
MARIA NUNO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a. MARTA GARCIA did knowingly conduct
and cause to be conducted a finangial transaction affecting interstate, to wit: a Western Union
Moncy Wire Transfer in the amaunt of $982 {rom Juanita Guerrero, in Idaho, to Alfredo Nuno, in
Tucson, Arizona, which involved the proceeds of a specified unlawful activity, that is felony drug
trafficking, and that said defendants conducted and caused to be conducted the financial
transaction with the intent to promote the carrying on of said specified unlawful activity, and did
so knowing that the property involved in the financial transaction, that is monetary instruments in
the amount of $982, represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity, in violation of

Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956(a)(1)(A)i) and 2.
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COUNT SIXNTEEN

LAUNDERING OF MONETARY INSTRUMENTS
(18 U.S.C. §1956(a)(1{(A)i), and 18 U.S8.C. § 2)

On or about July 17, 1998, in the District of Idaho, defendants ALFREDO NUN();
MARIA NUNO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a. MARIA GARCIA did knowingly conduct
and cause to be conducted a financial transaction affecting in.terstatc-: commerce, (o wit: 4 Western
Union Money Wire Transfer in the amount of $1217 from John Davis, in Tdaho, to Alfredo Nuno,
in Tucson, Arizona, which involved the proceeds of a specified unlawful activity, that is felony
drug trafficking, and that said defendants conducted and caused to be conducted the financial
transaction with the intent to promote the carrying on of said specified unlawful activity, and did
s0 knowing that the property involved in the financial transaction, that is monctary instruments in
the amount of $1217, represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity, in violation of

Title 18, United States Code, Scetions 1956(a)(1){(A)(i) and 2.

COUNT SEVENTEEN
LAUNDERING OF MONETARY INSTRUMENTS
(18 U.K.C. §1956(a)(1)(A)(i), and 18 U.S.C. § 2)

On or about July 22, 1998, 1n the District of Idaho, defendants ALFREDO NUNOQO;
MARIA NUNO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a. MARIA GARCIA did knowingly conduct
and cause to be conducted a financial transaction affecting interstate commerce, to wit: a Westemn
Union Money Wire Transfer in the amount of $800 from Jen Hess, in Idaho, to Alfredo Nuno, in
Tucson, Arizona, which involved the proceeds of a specitied unlawtul activity, that is felony drug
trafficking, and that said defendants conducted and caused to be conducted the tinancial
transaction with the intent to promote the carrying on of said specified unlawful activity, and did
s0 knowing that the property involved in the financial transaction, that 13 monetary instruments in
the amount of $800, represented the procecds of some form of unlawful activity, in violation of

Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956(a)(1)}(A)1) and 2.
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COUNT EIGHTEEN
LAUNDERING OF MONETARY INSTRUMENTS
(18 U.S.C. $1956(a)(1)(AXi), and 18 U.S.C. §2)

On or about July 22, 1998, in the District of Idaho, defendants ALFREDO NUNQ;
MARIA NUNO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a. MARIA GARCIA did knowingly conduct
and cause to be conducted a financial transaction affecting interstate commerce, to wit: a Western
Union Moncy Wirc Transfer in the amount of $800 from Juanita Guerrero, in Idaho, to Alfredo
Nuno, in Tucson, Arizona, which involved the proceeds of a specified unlawful activity, (hat is
felony drug trafficking, and that said defendants conducted and caused to be conducted the
financial transaction with the intent to promote the carrying on of said specified unlawfu] activity,
and did so knowing that the property involved in the financial transaction, that is monetary
instruments in the amount of $800, represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity, in

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956(0(1){A)(1) and 2.

COUNT NINETEEN

LAUNDERING OF MONETARY INSTRUMENTS
(18 U.S.C. §1956(a)(1)(A)(i), and 18 U.S.C. § 2)

On or about September 27, 1998, in the Distrct of Idaho, defendants ALFREDO
NUNO; MARIA NUNO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a. MARIA GARCIA did knowingly
conduct and caused Lo be conducted a financial transaction affecting interstate commerce, o wit: a
Western Union Money Wire Transfer in the amount of $296 from Juanita Guerrero, in Idaho, to
Alfredo Nuno, in Tucson, Adzona, which involved the proceeds of a specified unlawful activity,
that 1s felony drug trafficking, and that said defendants conducted and caused to be conducted the
financial transaction with the intent to promote the carrying on of said specified unlawful activity,
and did so knowing that the property involved in the financial transaction, that is monetary

instruments in the amount of $296, represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity, in

INDMCTMENT - L3




viotation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956(a)(1)(A)(1) and 2.

COUNT TWENTY

LAUNDERING OF MONETARY INSTRUMENTS
(18 U.S.C. §1956(a)(1)(A)({), and 18 U.S.C. § 2)

On or about May 4, 1998, in the District of Idaho, defendants ALFREDO NUNO;
MARIA NUNO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a. MARIA GARCIA did knowingly conduct
and caused to be conducted a financial iransaction affecting interstate commerce, to wit: directing
the deposit $2300 into Bank of Commerce Account Number 08-1708003873, which involved the
proceeds of a specified unlawful activity, that is felony drug trafficking, and that said defendants
conducted and caused to be conducted the financial transaction with the intent to promote the
carrying on of said specified unlawtul activity, and did so knowing that the property involved in
the financial transaction, that is monetary instrurnents in the amount of $2300, represented the

proceeds of some form of unlawful activity, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections

1956(a)(1)(A)() and 2.

COUNT TWENTY-ONE

LAUNDERING OF MONETARY INSTRUMENTS
(18 U.S.C. §1956(a)(1)(A)(i), and 18 U.S.C. § 2)

On or about May 19, 1998, in the District of Idaho, defendants ALFREDQO NUNO;
MARIA NUNO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a. MARTA GARCIA did knowingly conduct
and caused to be conducted a financial transaclion affecting interstate, to wit: directing the deposit
$3600 into Bank of Commerce Account Number 08-1708003873, which involved the proceeds of
a specified unlawful activity, that is felony drug trafficking, and that said defendants conducted
and caused to be conducted the financial transaction with the intent to promote the carrying on of
said specificd unlawful activity, and did so knowing that the property involved in the financial

transaction, that is monetary instruments in the amount of $3600, represented the proceeds of
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some form of unlawfu! activity, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Scctions

1956(¢a)(1)(A)(1) and 2,

COUNT TWENTY-TWQO

LAUNDERING OF MONETARY INSTRUMENTS
(18 U.5.C. $1956(a)(1)(A)(i), and 18 U.S.C. § 2)

On or about June 12, 1998, in the District of Idaho, defendants ALFREDO NUN();
MARIA NUNO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.s. MARIA GARCIA did knowingly conduct
and cause to be conducted a financial transaction affecting interstate commerce, to wit: dirccting
the deposit $2500 into Bank of Commerce Account Number 08-1708003873, which involved the
proceeds of a specified unlawful activity, that is felony drug trafficking, and that said defendants
conducted and caused to be conducted the [inancial transaction with the intent to promote the
carrying on of said specified unlawful activity, and did su.knc)wing that the property involved in
the financial transaction, that is monetary instruments in the amount of $2500, represented the
proceeds of some form of unlawful activity, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections

1956(a)(1)(A)(i) and 2.

COUNT TWENTY-THREE

LAUNDERING OF MONETARY INSTRUMENTS
(18 U.S.C. §1956(a)(1)(A)(i), and 18 U.S.C. § 2)

On or about July 2, 1998, in the District of Idaho, defendants ALFREDO NUN(;
MARIA NUNO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a. MARIA GARCIA did knowingly conduct
and cause to be conducted a financial transaction affecting interstate commerce, to wit: directing
the deposit $800 into Bank of Commerce Account Number 08-1708003873, which involved the
procecds of a specified unlawful activity, that is felony drug trafficking, and that said defendants
conducted and caused to be conducted the financial transaction with the intent to promote the

carrying on of said specificd unlawful activity, and did so knowing that the property involved in
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the financial transaction, that 1s monetary instruments in the amount of $800, represented the

proceeds of some form of unlawful activity, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections

1956(a)(1}A)1) and 2.

COUNTS TWENTY-FOUR - FORTY-ONE

INTERSTATE AND FOREIGN TRAVEL OR TRANSPORTATION IN AID OF

RACKETEERING ENTERPRISES
18 U.S.C. 1952(a)(1)

On or about the dates set forth below, in the District of Idaho and elsewhere,

the defendants ALFREDO NUNQO; MARIA NUNQ a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a. MARIA

GARCIA did use a facility in interstate commeree, to wit: Western Union Wire Service, with

intent to distribule the proceeds of an unlawful activity, said unlawtul activity being a conspiracy

to distribute marijuana, all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1932.

COUNT DATE

24 12/10/97
25 12/10/97
26 12720197
27 12/19/97
28 3/25/98
29 4/13/93
30 4/13/98
31 7/14/98
32 9/16/98
33 5/11/99
34 5/19/98
35 6/15/98
36 6/15/98
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AMOUNT

$750
$750
$900
$2000
$200
$750
$750
$500
$200
£750
$800
$719
$719

TO

Arizona
Arizona
Arizona
Arizona
Nevada
Arnizona
Arizona
Arizona
Arizona
Nevada
Arizona
Arizona

Arizona

FROM

Idaho
Idaho
Idaho
Idaho
Idaho
Idaho
Idaho
Idaho
Idaho
Idaho
Idaho
Idaho
Idaho

See ACT

CATEGORY

NO.
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37 6/22/98
38 /17198
39 7/22/98
40 7/22/98
41 0/27/98

STRUCTURING TRANSACTIONS TO AVOID REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

On or about May 28, 1998, in the District of Idaho, the defendants, the defendants
ALFREDO NUNO and MARIA NUNO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER, a.k.a. MARIA GARCIA,
did knowingly and willfully and for the purpose of evading the reporting requirements of seclion
5313(a) of Title 31, United States Codc, and the regulations promulgated thereunder, structure,
assist in structuring, or attempt to structure and assist in structuring, the partial payment of the
purchase of 830 Freemont, Pocatello, Idaho with a domestic financial institurion, and did so while
violating another law of the United States, all in violation of Title 31, United States Code, Scction

5324(3) and 5322(b); Title 31, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 103.11; and Title 18, United

States Code, Section 2.

As a result of the violations of 21 U.8.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and 846, as charged in Counts One of
the indictment, the defendants, ALFREDO NUNOQ and MARIA NUNO a.k.a. MARIA KARGER,
aJk.a. MARIA GARCIA, shall forfeit to the United States any and all property, rcal and personal,
tangible and intangible, constituting or derived from any proceeds the said defendants obtained
directly or indirectly as a result of the foregoing offenses; and any and all property, real and personal,

tangible and intangible, used or intended to be used, in any manner or part, to comunit, or to facilitate
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$982 Anzona
$1217 Arizona
$300 Arizona
$800 Arizona
$296 Arizona
COUNT FORTY-T

31 U.S.C. 5324(3)

COUNT FOURTY-THREE
DRUG FORFEITURE

(21 U.S8.C, § 833)

Idaho
Idaho
Idaho
Idaho
Idaho

15
16
17
18
19




the commission of, the foregoing offenses; as to which property the defendants are jointly and
severally liable; these interests include, but are not limited to, the defendants’ interests in the

following property:

A Cash Proceeds: At least $33,900 in United States cumency and all interest and

proceeds traceable thercto, in that such sum in aggregale is property which constituted
proceeds of the charged offenses, or was received in exchange for the distribution of
controlled substances, and was subsequently expended, spent, distributed or otherwise
disposed of by the defendants.
SUBSTITUTE ASSETS
If any of the properties and intercsts described above as being subject to forfeiture, as a result
of any act or omission of the defendants:

1. Cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

2

. Has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third pcrson;

[

. Has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court;

4. Has been substantially diminished in value; or

5. Has been commingled with other property which cannot be subdivided without difficulty;
it is the intention of the United States, pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 853 (p) to seek forfeiture of any other
property of the said defendants up to the value of the forfeitable properties and interests herein.  All

pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 853.
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DATED this _____ /§’ . day of November, 2002.
THOMAS E MOSS

A TRUE BILL:

1”;/ 7L/ Zw é

FOREPERSON
/’
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